IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 88,019

DAVID EUGENE JOHNSTON,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

MARTIN J. MCCLAIN Litigation Director Florida Bar No. 0754773

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL REPRESENTATIVE 1533 south Monroe Street Tallahassee, FL 32301 (904) 407-4376

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding involves the appeal of the Circuit Court's denial of Mr. Johnston's motion for post-conviction relief. ^{The} motion was brought pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850.

ARGUMENT III

•

0

۲

0

D

TH ANI 199 SE VI	. JOHNSTON WAS NOT COMPETENT AT THE TIME OF E OFFENSE, DURING ALL PHASES OF HIS TRIAL, D WHEN THIS COURT SENTENCED HIM TO DEATH IN 94. MR. JOHNSTON WAS CONVICTED AND NTENCED TO DEATH WHILE INCOMPETENT IN OLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH ENDMENTS
ARGUMENI	IV IV
AS: HI: REI	. JOHNSTON DID NOT RECEIVE EFFECTIVE SISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT THE PENALTY PHASE OF S TRIAL. IN ADDITION, TRIAL COUNSEL WAS NDERED INEFFECTIVE BY THE ACTION OF THE IAL COURT AND STATE
ARGUMENI	· v
FL THI COI	SENTENCING MR. JOHNSTON TO DEATH, THE ORIDA SUPREME COURT GAVE GREAT WEIGHT TO E JURY'S RECOMMENDATION, YET FAILED TO NSIDER THAT THE JURY RECOMMENDATION WAS INTED BY NUMEROUS ERRORS 42
Α.	THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS AND PROSECUTOR'S COMMENTS AND/OR ARGUMENT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY SHIFTED THE BURDEN TO MR. JOHNSTON TO PROVE THAT DEATH WAS AN INAPPROPRIATE SENTENCE
Β.	MR. JOHNSTON'S SENTENCE RESTS UPON AN UNCONSTITUTIONALLY AUTOMATIC AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS 47
c.	THE TRIAL COURT AND PROSECUTOR UNCONSTITUTIONALLY MISLEAD THE JURY AS TO ITS SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY TOWARD THE SENTENCING OF MR. JOHNSTON ,

iv

D.	AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES WERE OVERBROADLY AND VAGUELY ARGUED BY COUNSEL FOR THE STATE, IN VIOLATION OF <u>ESPINOSA V. FLORIDA, STRINGER V.</u> <u>BLACK, SOCHOR V. FLORIDA, MAYNARD</u> <u>V, CARTWRIGHT, HITCHCOCK V. DUGGER,</u> AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS
Ε.	THE JURY INSTRUCTION ON THE HEINOUS, ATROCIOUS, OR CRUEL AGGRAVATOR WAS UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS 51
F.	MR. JOHNSTON DID NOT RECEIVE MENTAL HEALTH ASSISTANCE AS CONTEMPLATED BY <u>AKE V. OKLAHOMA</u> , IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS
G.	FLORIDA'S CAPITAL SENTENCING STATUTE IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL ON ITS FACE AND AS APPLIED IN THIS CASE BECAUSE IT FAILS TO PREVENT THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY. IT ALSO VIOLATES THE CONSTITUTIONAL GUARANTEES OF DUE PROCESS AND PROHIBITING CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT

ARGUMENT VI

1

MR. JOHNSTON WAS DENIED AN ADVERSARIAL TESTING AT THE GUILT/INNOCENCE PHASE OF HIS PROCEEDINGS; MR. JOHNSTON'S PROCEEDINGS WERE MATERIALLY UNRELIABLE DUE TO THE WITHHOLDING OF EXCULPATORY OR IMPEACHMENT MATERIAL, NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE, IMPROPER RULINGS AND CONDUCT OF THE TRIAL COURT, IMPROPER STATE CONDUCT, INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND/OR ALL OF THE FOREGOING, IN VIOLATION OF MR. JOHNSTON'S RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. 59

ARGUMENT VII

NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE SHOWS THAT A FORENSIC EXPERT RELIED UPON BY A STATE WITNESS HAD MISREPRESENTED CREDENTIALS AND TRAINING, THUS COUNSEL WAS UNABLE TO PROPERLY PREPARE FOR CROSS EXAMINATION 61

ARGUMENT VIII

ARGUMENT IX

ARGUMENT X

ARGUMENT XI

а

а

а

а

а

а

а

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

•

۲

1

۲

۲

Ð

<u>Page</u>

Agan v. Sinaletarv, 9 F.3d 900 (11th Cir. 1993)
<u>Ake v. Oklahoma,</u> 470 U.S. 68 (1985)
<u>Allen v. Hardy</u> , 478 U.S. 255 (1986) ,
<u>Anderson v. State</u> , 627 So. 2d 1170 (Fla. 1993)
<u>Aranso v. State</u> , 411 So. 2d 171 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Atkins v. Attorney General,</u> 932 F.2d 1430 (11th Cir. 1991) , 40
Bishop v. United States, 350 U.S. 961 (1956)
Blanco v. Singletary, 943 F.2d 1477 (11th Cir. 1991)
Boyde <u>v. California</u> , 110 s. ct. 1190 (1990) ,
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963)
Brookings v. State, 495 so. 2d 135 (Fla. 1986)
<u>Brown v. State</u> , 596 So. 2d 1026 (Fla. 1992)
Burton v. Johnson, 975 F.2d 690 (10th Cir. 1992), <u>cert. denied</u> , 113 s. ct. 1879 (1993)
<u>Caldwell v. Mississippi</u> , 472 U.S. 320 (1985) , 43, 45, 47, 49
<u>Callins v. Collins</u> , No. 93-7054 (February 22, 1994)
Cams v. Sullivan, 13 F.3d 350 (10th Cir. 1994)

<u>Cave v. Sinaletary</u> , 971 F.2d 1513 (11th Cir. 1992)
<u>Clisby v. Jones</u> , 960 F.2d 925 (11th Cir. 1992)
<u>Craia v. State,</u> 21 Fla. L. Weekly S417 (Oct. 3, 1996)
<u>Cunningham v. Zant</u> , 928 F.2d 1006 (11th Cir. 1991)
<u>Drone v. Missouri,</u> 420 U.S. 162 (1975)
<u>Duest v. Sinaletarv</u> , 997 F.2d 1336 (11th Cir. 1993)
<u>Dusky v. United States</u> 362 U.S. 402 (1960)
<u>Elledae v. State</u> , 346 So. 2d 998 (Fla. 1977)
<u>Engle v. Duaaer</u> , 576 so. 2d 696 (Fla. 1991)
<u>Espinosa v. Florida,</u> 112 S. Ct. 2926 (1992)
Estelle v. Smith, 451 U.S. 454 (1981)
Eutzv v. Dugger, 746 F. Supp. 1492 (N.D. Fla. 1989)
<u>Ferrell v. State,</u> 653 So. 2d 367 (Fla. 1995)
<u>Foster v. Duaaer</u> 823 F.2d 402 (11th Cir. 1987)
<u>Foster v. Lockhart</u> , 9 F.3d 722 (8th Cir. 1993)
<u>Francis v. Franklin</u> , 471 U.S. 307 (1985)
<u>Furman v. Georaia</u> , 408 U.S. 238 (1972)

•

•

•

<u>Ga</u>	<u>arcia v. State</u> , 622 So. 2d 1325 (Fla. 1993)
<u>Gi</u>	<u>iqlio v. United States,</u> 405 U.S. 150 (1972)
<u>Gc</u>	o <mark>dfrey v. Georsia,</mark> 446 U.S. 420 (1980) ,
<u>Gc</u>	olden v. State, 629 So. 2d 109 (Fla. 1993)
Gr	<u>rasso v. Norton</u> , 520 F.2d 27 (2d Cir. 1975)
На	ammontree v. Phelas, 605 F.2d 1371 (5th Cir. 1979)
Ha	arich v. Dugger, 844 F.2d 1464 (11th Cir. 1988) , 49
Ha	arrison v. Jones, 880 F.2d 1279 (11th Cir. 1989) 40
<u>Ha</u>	<u>aves v. Lockhart,</u> 881 F.2d 1451 (8th Cir. 1989), <u>cert. denied,</u> 493 U.S. 1088 (1990)
He	errera v. Collins, 113 s. Ct. 853 (1993)
<u>Hi</u>	<u>ill v. State</u> , 643 So. 2d 1071 (Fla. 1994) 16
<u>Hi</u>	<u>itchcock v. Dugger</u> , 481 U.S. 393 (1987)
Ho	offman V. State, 571 so. 2d 49 (Fla. 1990)
Ho	<u>olland v. State</u> , 503 so. 2d 1250 (Fla. 1987) ,
Ho	<u>orton v. Zant</u> , 941 F.2d 1449 (11th Cir. 1991)
<u>H1</u>	u <u>ff v. State</u> , 622 So. 2d 982 Fla. 1993)
H	ull v. Freeman, 932 F.2d 159 (3rd Cir. 1991)

•

Huvnh v. King, 95 F.3d 1052 (11th Cir. 1996) 35
<u>In re Bonner</u> , 151 U.S. 242 (1984) ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
<u>In Re Winship</u> 397 U.S.'358 (1970)
<u>Jackson v. Duqqer,</u> 837 F.2d 1469 (11th Cir. 1988)
<u>Jackson v. Virginia</u> , 443 U.S. 307 (1979)
<u>James v. Singletarv</u> , 957 F.2d 1562 (11th Cir. 1992)
<u>Jennings v. State</u> , 583 So. 2d 316 (Fla. 1991) ,
<u>Johnston v. Duqqer</u> , 583 So. 2d 657 (Fla. 1991) , 1
<u>Johnston v. Singletary</u> 115 S. Ct. 1262 (1995) 4, 10, 18
<u>Johnston v. Singletary</u> , 640 So. 2d 1102 (Fla. 1994)
<u>Johnston v. State</u> , 497 So. 2d 863 (Fla. 1986)
<u>Jones v. State</u> , 591 so. 2d 911 (Fla. 1991) . ,
<u>King v, Strickland</u> , 748 F.2d 1462 (1984) ,
<u>Kvles v. Whitley</u> , 115 s. ct. 1555 (1995) ,
Lafferty v. Cook, 949 F.2d 1546 (10th Cir. 1991)
<u>cert. denied</u> , 112 s. ct. 1942 (1992)
Lemon v. State, 498 So. 2d 923 (Fla. 1986)
Linkletter v. Walker, 381 U.S. 618 (1965)

.

•

.

•

<u>Mann v. Dugger</u> , 844 F.2d 1446 (11th Cir. 1988)
<u>Mason v. State</u> , 489 so. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986)
<u>Maynard v. Cartwrisht</u> , 108 S. Ct. 1853 (1988)
McCampbell v. State, 421 So. 2d 1072 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Mendvk v. State</u> , 592 So. 2d 1076 (Fla. 1992)
<u>Middleton v. Duqqer</u> , 849 F.2d 491 (11th Cir. 1988)
<u>Mills ¥. Maryland,</u> 108 S. Ct. 1860 (1988)
<u>Mincey v. Arizona,</u> 437 U.S. 385 (1978)
<u>Miranāta v. Arizona</u> , 384 U.S. 436 (1966)
<u>Moore v. Zant</u> , 972 F.2d 318 (11th Cir. 1992), <u>cert. denied,</u> 113 s. Ct. 1650 (1993) , and a contract 14
<u>Moran v. Godinez,</u> 40 F.3d 1567 (9th Cir. 1994)
<u>Muehleman v. Dugger</u> , 623 So. 2d 480 (Fla. 1993)
<u>Mullanev v. Wilbur,</u> 421 U.S. 684 and a
<u>Naaue v. Illinois,</u> 360 U.S. 264 (1959)
<u>Nathaniel v. Estelle</u> , 493 F.2d 794 (5th Cir. 1974)
<u>O'Callaqhan v. State</u> , 461 So. 2d 1354 (Fla. 1984)
<u>Parker v. Dugger</u> , 111 s. ct. 731 (1991)

6

(

(

•

•

<u>Parker v. Dugger,</u> 498 U.S. 308 (1991)	10
<u>Parker v. State</u> , 643 So. 2d 1032 (Fla. 1994)	16
Pate v. Robinson, 383 U.S. 375 (1966)	30
<u>Penrv v. Lynaugh</u> , 109 S. Ct. 2934 (1989)	44
<u>Porter v. State</u> , 564 So. 2d 1060 (Fla. 1990)	47
<u>Powers v. Schwartz,</u> 448 F. Supp. 54 (S.D. Fla. 1978), <u>vac'd as moot,</u> 587 F.2d 783 (5th Cir. 1979)	14
<u>Proffitt v. Florida</u> , 96 S. Ct. 2960 (1976)	
<u>Proffitt v. Florida</u> , 428 U.S. 242 (1976)	57
<u>Provenzano v. Duqqer</u> , 561 So. 2d 541 (Fla. 1990) . ,	23
<u>Rhodes v. State</u> , 547 so. 2d 1201 (Fla. 1989) ,	52
<u>Richmond v. Le is</u> , 113 S. Ct" 528 (1992)	57
<u>Sandstrom v. Montana</u> , 442 U.S. 510 (1979) ,	44
<u>Scott v. State</u> , 657 So. 2d 1129 (Fla. 1995) ,	59
<u>Shell v. Mississiwwi,</u> 111 s. ct. 313 (1990) ,	43
<u>Simmons v. South Carolina</u> , 114 S. Ct. 2187 (1994) , 46,	
<u>Sireci v. State</u> , 502 So. 2d 1221 (Fla. 1987)	22
<u>Skelton v. State of Texas</u> , 795 S.W.2d 162 (1989) ,	76

0

۲

•

•

۲

•

•

•

•

<u>Smith v. Lucas</u> , 16 F.3d 638 (5th Cir. 1994)	13
<u>Smith v. Wainwrisht</u> , 799 F.2d 1442 (11th Cir. 1986)	59
<u>Sochor v. Florida</u> , 112 S. Ct. 2114 (1992)	17, 46
<u>Starr v. Lockhart,</u> 23 F.3d 1280 (8th Cir. 1994)	53
<u>State v. Crews</u> , 477 so. 2d 984 (Fla. 1985) ,	22
<u>State v, Dixon</u> , 283 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1973)	• • 42
<u>State v. Kokal,</u> 562 So. 2d 324 (Fla. 1990)	23
S <u>tate v. Law,</u> 559 so. 2d 187 (Fla. 1989)	76
<u>Stein v. State</u> , 632 So. 2d 1361 (Fla. 1994)	50, 51
<u>Strickland v. Washinaton</u> , 466 U.S. 668 (1984) ,	33, 58
<u>Strinaer v. Black</u> , 112 S. Ct. 1130 (1992)	46
Teaque <u>v. Lane</u> , 489 U.S. 288 (1989)	18
Thompson <u>v. Calderon</u> , 86 F.3d 1509 (9th Cir. 1996)	35
Thompson <u>v. Wainwright</u> , 787 F.2d 1447 (11th Cir. 1986)	35
<u>Tifford v. Wainwrisht</u> , 588 F.2d 954 (5th Cir. 1979)	14
<u>United States ex rel. Brown v. Rundle</u> , 427 F.2d 223 (3d Cir. 1970)	14

•

•

•

۲

۲

۲

۲

۲

•

xiii

<u>United States ex rel. Miller v, Pate</u> , 299 F. Supp. 418 (E.D. III. 1969),
<pre>rev'd on other grounds,</pre>
<u>United States ex rei. Schuster v. Vincent</u> , 524 F.2d 153 (2d Cir. 1975) 14
United States v. Bigley, 473 U.S. 667 (1985)
<u>United States v. Spagnoulo</u> , 960 F.2d 995 (11th Cir. 1992)
<u>Ventura v. State</u> , 673 So. 2d 479 (Fla. 1996)
<u>Walton v. Arizona</u> , 110 s. ct. 3047 (1990) <i>a constante de la const</i>
<u>Walton v. Dugger</u> , 621 So. 2d 1357 (Fla. 1993)
Witherspoon v. State, 590 so. 2d 1138 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992)
<u>Woods v. State</u> , 531 so. 2d 79 (Fla. 1988)

•

•

0

۲

0

۲

•

•

•

0

•

STATEMENT QF THE CASE AND FACTS

Mr. Johnston was indicted on December 12, 1983 for firstdegree murder (R. 1918). At a jury trial, Mr. Johnston was convicted of first degree murder (R. 2382). The penalty phase was conducted and the jury recommended death by an 8 to 4 vote 2403). The judge imposed a death sentence, finding three (3) (R. aggravators: prior violent felony; offense committed in the course of a felony; and especially heinous, atrocious, or cruel (R. 2412-15). Mr. Johnston's conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal. Johnston v. State, 497 So. 2d 863 (Fla. In 1988, a warrant was signed setting Mr. Johnston's 1986). execution. Mr. Johnston filed a motion pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850. The trial court granted a stay of execution and granted an evidentiary hearing on several claims. The evidentiary hearing was held in June, 1989. Following the hearing, the Circuit Court denied all relief (PC-R. 1678-88). Mr. Johnston appealed to this Court which affirmed the denial of 3.850 relief and denied Mr. Johnston's petition far state habeas corpus relief. Johnston v. Duqger, 583 So. 2d 657 (Fla. 1991).

Mr. Johnston then filed a federal Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus, which was granted on September 16, 1993 as to Mr. Johnston's sentence of death and denied as to the guilt determination. Specifically, the district court granted the Writ ON Claim VII (the instruction on the statutory aggravating circumstance "heinous, atrocious or cruel" violated the Eighth Amendment) and Claim XXI (Florida's overbroad death penalty

statute was applied to Mr. Johnston in violation of the Eighth Amendment) and denied the remaining claims.

The Writ was conditional, giving Florida sixty (60) days to initiate appropriate proceedings in state court. Appropriate proceedings included: (1) resentencing Mr. Johnston; (2) performing appellate reweighing or harmless error analysis; or (3) imposition of a life sentence.

In December, 1993, the State of Florida sought to cure the Eighth Amendment error identified by the district court by filing a motion in this Court requesting this Court to "open a case" and perform either an appellate reweighing or harmless error analysis (Johnston v. Sinsletarv, et. al, Movant, Motion, Sept. 28, 1993). Mr. Johnston filed a Response questioning the basis of this Court's jurisdiction to "open a case" and suggesting that the court reopen the direct appeal and grant full briefing and oral argument (Johnston v. Singletary, FSC No. 82,457, Response, Oct. 13, 1993). This Court issued an order stating it would "consider the Motion for Expedited Reweighing or Harmless Error Analysis Pursuant to Espinosa v. Florida" and directed the State of Florida to file a brief by Dec. 30, 1993; Mr. Johnston to file a brief by Jan. 14, 1994, and the state to file a reply brief by Jan. 24, 1994 (Johnston v . Singletary, FSC No. 82,457, Dec. 10, 1993 order).

Mr. Johnston sought reconsideration and/or clarification of this order, or dismissal of the State's motion, on the grounds that the order failed to rule on the motion, failed to indicate

what rules of court applied, failed to state whether the court was re-opening the direct appeal, and failed to comport with due process. Mr. Johnston further objected that the court lacked jurisdiction to "open a case" (Johnston v. Sincfletarv, FSC No. 82,457, Motion, Dec. 17, 1993). Mr. Johnston's motion was denied without prejudice "to raise jurisdictional questions on the merits." Mr. Johnston was directed to file an "Appellant's answer brief" by Feb. 1, 1994. Mr. Johnston's Motion to Correct and Designate Caption filed Dec. 17, 1993 was also denied (Johnston v. State, FSC No. 82,457, Jan. 24, 1994, order).

The State filed an "Initial Brief of Respondent." Before filing his brief, Mr. Johnston filed a Motion to Determine Record, again asserting his due process right to notice of what proceeding was taking place and what constituted the record. This Court issued an order on the motion stating only that: "the record in the above cause is the record that was before the court" (Johnston v. Sinsletarv, FSC No. 82,457, March 2, 1994 order). Mr. Johnston filed his "Brief on Motion Filed by Harry K. Singletary" on March 21, 1994. The State filed a reply brief. Mr. Johnston renewed his request that the court reopen his direct appeal (Johnston v. State, FSC No. 65,525, Motion, April 7, 1994), but never received a ruling. On June 23, 1994, this Court issued an opinion holding the Eighth Amendment error harmless and procedurally barred. Johnston v. Sinsletarv, 640 So. 2d 1102 (Fla. 1994). Mr. Johnston filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the United States Supreme Court. On February 27,

1995, the Supreme Court denied certiorari, <u>Johnston v.</u> <u>Singletary</u>, 115 S. Ct. 1262 (1995), and Mr. Johnston's death sentence thus became final.

On March 7, 1995, Mr. Johnston timely filed a state postconviction motion pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851 which directs that a motion to vacate judgment of conviction and sentence of death be filed by the prisoner within one (1) year Also filed on that after the judgment and sentence become final. date was a Motion to Disqualify Judge Powell. The Motion to Disqualify was granted and the case reassigned to Judge MacKinnon. Thereafter, on March 29, 1995, a Supplemental Motion to Vacate was filed and on July 3, 1995 an Amended Motion to Vacate was filed. On December 21, 1995, the Circuit Court dismissed Mr. Johnston's Motion, his Supplemental Motion and his Amended Motion to Vacate Judgment and Sentence without prejudice as well as a Motion to Admit Counsel Pro Hac Vice which had been filed by then co-counsel, K. Leslie Delk. In denying the pro hac vice motion, the trial court stated that Ms. Delk had filed a motion raising matters which were clearly successive and abusive and omitted a description of the conditional nature of the grant of habeas relief. In its order, the Circuit Court granted undersigned counsel ten (10) days to file a new motion. A Rehearing Motion was filed on January 4, 1996 requesting reconsideration of Mr. Johnston's Amended Motion to Vacate Judgment and Sentence. That motion was granted and a hearing pursuant to Huff v. State, 622 So. 2d 982 Fla. 1993) was set for

February 29, 1996. On March 6, 1996, the Circuit Court summarily denied Mr. Johnston's Amended Rule 3.850 motion stating that the motion was time-barred and constituted an abuse of process in that the claims were or should have been raised on appeal **or** in a previous collateral proceedings. On March 18, counsel filed Mr. Johnston's Motion for Rehearing from Order Denying Amended Motion to Vacate which was denied March 21, 1996. On April 18, 1996, Mr. Johnston **timely** filed a notice of appeal.

9

9

9

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

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