FILED

SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MAY 20 1997

CLERK, SUPREME COURT By______ Chief Deputy Clerk

DAVID EUGENE JOHNSTON,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 88,019

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

KENNETH S. NUNNELLEY Assistant Attorney General Fla. Bar #0998818 444 Seabreeze Blvd. 5th FL Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Johnston's Rule 3.850 motion was properly denied as time barred because it was filed long after his conviction and sentence of death became final. The 1993 proceedings in this Court were not "resentencing" proceedings that operated to re-start the Rule 3.850 time limitation period.

Johnston waived his claim of a violation of Chapter 119, Fla. Stat., when he expressly abandoned that claim in the trial court. He cannot now resurrect that claim.

The substantive claims contained in Johnston's brief are untimely because they were brought more than two years after Johnston's conviction and sentence became final. The 1993 proceedings in this Court were not "resentencing" proceedings that affected the Rule 3.850 time limitation.

The trial court's denial of the Rule 3.850 motion on the alternative basis that the motion is a successive motion that is an abuse of process is correct in all respects.

Court.

ARGUMENT

I. THE CIRCUIT COURT PROPERLY DENIED JOHNSTON'S RULE 3.850 MOTION AS TIME-BARRED AND SUCCESSIVE

On pages 10-23 of his brief, Johnston argues that the Circuit Court erroneously denied his post-conviction motion on time-bar and successive petition grounds. That position is based upon an inaccurate, incomplete and misleading representation of the proceedings leading up to this Rule 3.850 motion. Contrary to Johnston's position, the Circuit Court properly denied the motion on procedural grounds.

This case returned to this Court in 1993, after the Federal District Court found that the jury instruction on the heinous, atrocious, or cruel aggravating circumstance was deficient under *Espinosa v. Florida*. The District Court ordered:

Accordingly, because only the Florida courts can determine the proper approach to [Johnston's] sentencing, the writ of habeas corpus will be conditionally granted, within sixty (60) days from the date of this Order, unless the State of Florida initiates appropriate proceedings in state court. Because a new sentencing hearing before a jury is not constitutionally required, the State of Florida may initiate whatever state court proceedings it finds appropriate, including seeking a life sentence or the performance of a reweighing or harmless error analysis by the Florida Supreme Court.

Johnston v. Singletary, 640 So.2d at 1103. This Court found that the jury instruction issue was procedurally barred because it could

have been but was not raised at trial or on direct appeal from Johnston's conviction and sentence of death. *Id.*, at 1104. Alternatively, this Court held that any error was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. *Id.*, at 1104-5. In an incredibly misleading piece of advocacy, Johnston ignores this Court's disposition of the issue on procedural bar grounds altogether and attempts to transform the alternative harmless error holding into a "resentencing" proceeding which restarted the time limitations for initiation of collateral attack proceedings.

In finding, in the alternative, that any error was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt, this Court stated:

Even if the issue were not procedurally barred, "we are convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the erroneous would not instruction have affected the jury's recommendation or the trial court's sentence." Id. The jury would have found Johnston's brutal stabbing and strangulation of the eighty-four-year-old victim, who undoubtedly suffered great terror and pain before she died, heinous, atrocious, or cruel, even with the limiting instruction. Further, there were two other strong aggravators and no mitigation present. The error was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt.

Johnston v. Singletary, 640 So.2d at 1104-5. Johnston's argument that this Court imposed sentence is wholly incredible because nothing in the decision of this Court purports to "resentence" Johnston, and the Federal District Court did not treat the decision of this Court as such a proceeding. The reason for that result is

apparent from the opinion of this Court--it is not possible to transform that decision, which is expressly based upon procedural bar grounds, into one which resentenced the defendant. Such an imaginative interpretation of this Court's decision does not survive scrutiny.

The starting point in Johnston's analysis is his assertion that the Federal habeas court "vacated" his sentence of death when the conditional writ of habeas corpus was issued. That claim is refuted by the order of the district court, which stated that "the writ of habeas corpus will be conditionally granted, within sixty (60) days from the date of this Order, unless the State of Florida initiates appropriate proceedings in state court." Johnston v. Singletary, 640 So.2d 1102, 1103 (Fla. 1994). The district court left the nature of the "appropriate proceedings" open, and specifically held that "reweighing or harmless error analysis" by this Court was sufficient to avoid issuance of the writ of habeas corpus. Id.² Such proceedings were conducted, and the writ never issued. Because the writ never issued, Johnston's sentence of death

Stated in slightly different terms, the **failure** of the State to conduct the required State Court proceedings was a condition precedent to the issuance of the writ and the setting aside of the death sentence.

was not vacated.

Despite Johnston's disingenuous argument to the contrary, his 1984 death sentence has never been set aside. Likewise, there is no factual basis for the claim that the 1994 proceedings before this Court were "resentencing" proceedings. This Court obviously did not take that view, given that the single issue before the Court was resolved on procedural bar grounds. Likewise, the district court did not regard the proceedings before this Court as amounting to "resentencing" proceedings, given that the federal court disposed of the jury instruction claim on procedural default grounds. The order of the federal court stated that the State may initiate whatever state court proceedings were deemed appropriate, and did not imply that the state courts were required to ignore settled state procedural rules. As the final order of that Court makes clear, relief was denied because the jury instruction claim is procedurally defaulted. That basis for denial of relief is hardly surprising because a procedural default is a jurisdictional defect which cannot be waived. Sochor v. Florida, 112 S.Ct. 2114 at n. * (1992). Because the District Court was without jurisdiction to entertain the jury instruction claim in the first instance, that Court cannot have "vacated" Johnston's sentence based upon claimed instructional error. Therefore, Johnston's claim that this Court

resentenced him in 1994 is without merit. Because that is true, Johnston's successive motion for relief pursuant to Rule 3.850 was properly denied as time barred. (R419-23)

Johnston's conviction and sentence became final when the direct appeal concluded in 1986.³ Consequently, Johnston had two years in which to initiate Rule 3.850 proceedings, which he did. See, e.g., Johnston II. Because this motion to vacate was not filed until almost 10 years after Johnston's conviction and sentence became final (and because Johnston has already had one Rule 3.850 motion), the trial court properly denied the motion as time barred and as an abuse of process. (R419-24) See, Zeigler v. State, 654 So.2d 1162 (Fla. 1995). That decision should be affirmed in all respects.

II. JOHNSTON WAIVED ANY CHAPTER 119 ISSUE IN THE TRIAL COURT, AND CANNOT NOW ARGUE THAT ISSUE AS A BASIS FOR REVERSAL

On pages 23-29 of his brief, Johnston argues that he is entitled to an evidentiary hearing on his claim that all of his public record requests were not complied with. This claim is not a basis for reversal of the trial court's order because Johnston

Johnston did not petition the United States Supreme Court for a writ of certiorari.

expressly waived any complaint of non-compliance with such requests. (R3-4; 55) Moreover, the trial court noted such waiver in the dispositive order (R423), and, even though Johnston moved for rehearing of that order, he did not take issue with the finding that the public records issue had been explicitly waived. (R430-32) Johnston's attempt to resurrect this issue by ignoring his express waiver is, at least, disingenuous. The Chapter 119 issue is not preserved for review.

To the extent that Johnston refers this Court to the record in Correll v. State, No. 88,474 as authority for his position that he is entitled to further proceedings concerning the role of blood spatter expert Judith Bunker, that record does not help him. This Court decided the Correll case on April 10, 1997, and upheld the trial court's finding that nothing about Ms. Bunker's background qualified as "newly discovered evidence". Correll v. State, No. 88,474 (Fla., April 10, 1997). That decision is dispositive of Johnston's claim of a Chapter 119 violation as to Ms. Bunker as well as resolving his newly discovered evidence claim which is predicated upon the same operative facts.⁴

Johnston's newly discovered evidence claim appears as Claim VII beginning on page 61 of his brief. *Correll* is in all respects dispositive of this claim, and there is no reason to dignify that

III. THE REMAINING CLAIMS ARE UNTIMELY

There are nine substantive legal claims contained in Johnston's brief, which appear at pages 30-79 of his brief. Each of those claims is untimely because none of those claims are brought within the two-year time period established by the pre-1993 version of Rule 3.850. The trial court applied the time bar in denying relief as to each claim, and that ruling should be affirmed in all respects.

The premise underlying each substantive claim is Johnston's position that this Court "resentenced" him to death in 1994. For the reasons set out at pages 5-9, above, Johnston was not "resentenced", but rather has remained under a death sentence that was imposed in 1984 and was affirmed by this Court on direct appeal in 1986. Johnston's conviction and sentence became final in 1986, with the issuance of this Court's mandate, and Johnston had two years from that time in which to initiate Rule 3.850 proceedings.⁵ This motion, which was filed in **1995**, it time barred because it was not filed until long after the two-year time limitation had expired. See, In re Rule 3.850 of Florida Rules of Criminal

claim, which should have been withdrawn after *Correll* was released, with further discussion.

As set out above, Johnston did file a timely Rule 3.850 motion.

Procedure, 481 So.2d 480 (Fla. 1985); Huff v. State, 569 So.2d 1247 (Fla. 1990). The trial court's ruling that this motion is time barred is fully in accord with settled Florida law, and should be affirmed in all respects.

To the extent that Johnston argues that his claim that he was abused in some fashion by the judge that presided over his capital trial and that that is "new evidence" of his mental state at that time, that claim fails. That "information" was obviously available at the time of trial as well as at the time of the first Rule 3.850 motion. This "issue" is time barred under settled Florida law. *Zeigler v. State*, 654 So.2d 1162 (Fla. 1995). The trial court's denial of relief should be affirmed in all respects.

IV. JOHNSTON'S RULE 3.850 MOTION WAS PROPERLY DENIED AS SUCCESSIVE

In addition to denying Johnston's Rule 3.850 motion on timebar grounds, the trial court also denied the motion because it is a successive motion. (R424) That ruling is correct in all respects and should be affirmed.

Under settled Florida law, it is an abuse of process to raise a claim, in a successive Rule 3.850 motion, that was decided in a prior motion. See, Bundy v. State, 538 So.2d 445 (Fla. 1989); Christopher v. State, 489 So.2d 22, 24 (Fla. 1986). Ineffective

assistance of counsel claims are treated no differently, and the law is clear that such claims cannot be litigated on a piecemeal basis. *Jones v. State*, 591 So.2d 911, 913 (Fla. 1991); *Spaziano v. State*, 545 So.2d 843 (Fla. 1989).

Johnston's claim that he was incompetent at the time of trial, sentencing, and at the time of the 1994 appellate proceedings is procedurally barred because it could have been but was not raised on direct appeal. When Johnston attempted to raise this claim in his first Rule 3.850 motion, this Court applied settled Florida law and found the claim to be procedurally barred. *Johnston v. Dugger*, 583 So.2d 657 (Fla. 1991).⁶

Johnston's claim that penalty phase counsel rendered constitutionally ineffective assistance is procedurally barred because it was raised in Johnston's first Rule 3.850 motion. *Johnston v. Dugger, supra.* Florida law is clear that Johnston may not relitigate this claim in a successive Rule 3.850 motion. *Spaziano, supra.*⁷

On pages 42-58 of his brief, Johnston argues that this Court, in sentencing him to death, gave great weight to a tainted jury

This claim appears at pages 30-32 of Johnston's brief. 7 This claim appears at pages 32-42 of Johnston's brief. recommendation. As set out above, this Court did not sentence Johnston to death at all, much less impose that sentence in 1994. This claim is based upon a flawed premise, and is not a basis for relief. In any event, this claim is not properly before this Court because is it raised for the first time on appeal from the denial of Rule 3.850 relief. *Doyle v. State*, 526 So.2d 909, 911 (Fla. 1988).

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